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TOWN OF APPLE VALLEY 

TOWN COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Town Council  Date: October 28, 2014 
 
From:  Marc Puckett, Assistant Town Manager Item No: 12 
 
Subject: AMENDMENT TO GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF SAN 

BERNARDINO FOR PRESERVATION AND OPERATION OF THE 
VICTOR VALLEY MUSEUM  

 
T.M.  Approval:_____________________  Budgeted Item:  Yes   No  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
1. That the Town Council approve an increase in the amount of $10,000.00 for a total 

of $25,000.00 in annual financial support provided to the Victor Valley Museum in 
partnership with the San Bernardino County Museum.   
 

2. That the Town Council approve Budget Amendment BA 15-05 in the amount of 
$10,000.00 increasing the appropriation for annual financial support for the Victor 
Valley Museum to $25,000.00 (General Fund).  

 
SUMMARY:  
 
Approval of this amendment to the grant agreement with the County of San Bernardino 
for the preservation and operation of the Victor Valley Museum will increase the annual 
financial support for the museum by $10,000.00 to $25,000.00.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On September 8, 2009, Doug Shumway, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the 
Victor Valley Museum, made an appeal to the Town Council for financial assistance to 
prevent the museum’s closing due to lack of revenue and funding. Mr. Shumway 
indicated that the museum’s current business plan estimated that the museum would be 
depleted of operating funds by October, 2009. He asserted that the museum had been 
sustained by donations and fundraising up to that point, but like other non-profit 



 
 

Council Meeting Date: 10/28/2014   12-2 
 

Town Council Staff Report 
Page 2 

 

agencies, it had lost support due to the dwindling economy. Mr. Shumway stated that he 
had made a similar appeal to the San Bernardino County Museum and that the County 
museum had agreed to help either by taking over the facility or by providing funds to 
keep it open.  

Subsequent to the September 8, 2009 Council meeting, San Bernardino County 
Museum Director Robert McKernan researched the costs of incorporating the Victor 
Valley Museum into the County Museum System. In his report, he suggested a phased 
approach for incorporation. Phase I addresses a one-time cost for incorporation. Phase 
II identified the ongoing cost to operate the Victor Valley Museum and included annual 
offsetting revenue received from other sources. According to the report, the annual 
offsetting revenue would be generated through admissions and facility use fees, 
educational program fees, and High Desert community funding support. In addition to 
private donations, the community funding expectation included financial support from 
the Mojave Water Agency, City of Hesperia, and the Town of Apple Valley. The report 
estimated the Town’s level of support to be $7,500.00; dependent upon facility revenue 
and donations from other community stakeholders, the Town’s actual level of funding 
was expected to be within the range of $7,500.00 to $15,000.00 per year. Then County 
Supervisor Brad Mitzelfelt had indicated that the County would absorb all take over and 
start up costs.  

Based upon a recent review of the cost of operation of the museum by the County 
Library Director, in July, 2014, County Supervisor Lovingood requested that the Town 
consider a $10,000.00 increase in the level of support provided for preservation and 
operation of the Museum.  

The Victor Valley Museum currently located at 11873 Apple Valley Road in Apple 
Valley, opened in the Victorville Courthouse in 1976 and provides approximately 7,000 
visitors per year with a compelling look into the rich and varied history of the High 
Desert. With displays of Native American artifacts, the region’s mining and pioneer 
history, and native animal exhibits to name a few, the museum prides itself on 33 years 
of continued education, enrichment, and inspiration of both young and old through the 
preservation of local history. In recognition of its participation and support of the 
museum, the Town received its own wing or exhibit area and is featured on all 
promotional museum items.  
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FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The proposed amendment to the grant agreement with the County of San Bernardino 
for preservation and operation of the Victor Valley Museum will increase the annual 
financial support for the museum by $10,000.00 from $15,000.00 to $25,000.00 
annually.  If approved, the additional funding will be appropriated from the General Fund 
available fund balance.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the attached grant agreement and BA 15-05. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
1. Grant Agreement between the Town of Apple Valley and County of San Bernardino 

for Operation and Preservation of the Victor Valley Museum. 
 

2. Budget Amendment No. 15-05 Approving $10,000 Increase in Annual Financial  
Support for Victor Valley Museum.   
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